ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH, EDUCATI ON AND SOCI AL SERVI CES
STANDI NG COW TTEE
March 30, 2004
3:06 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representati ve Peggy Wl son, Chair
Representative Carl Gatto, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve John Coghi l
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Kelly Wl f
Representati ve Sharon Ci ssna
Representative Mary Kapsner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 338
"An Act relating to attendance at public school; and providing
for an effective date.”

- MOVED CSHB 338(HES) QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 288

"An Act relating to certain determ nations concerning placenent
of a child in enmergency custody and tenporary placenent hearings
in child-in-need-of-aid proceedings; and providing for an
effective date.”

- MOVED SB 288 QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BI LL NO. 269
"An Act relating to access to the library records of a child by
a parent or guardian."”

- MOVED SB 269 OQUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE CONCURRENT RESOLUTI ON NO. 19

Relating to the support of fisheries education, training, and
research and encouraging collaborative efforts between the
state, the University of Al aska, and other educational
institutions to provide fisheries education prograns.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -1- March 30, 2004



- MOVED SCR 19 OQUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 239

"An Act directing the Departnment of Public Safety to establish
an Internet-based identification and tracking systemrelating to
controlled substances that are prescribed for human use; and
relating to the manner in which prescriptions for controlled
substances may be filled by a pharmacist."”

- SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 338

SHORT TI TLE: ENTRY | NTO SCHOCL
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) MCGUI RE

01/ 12/ 04 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 (H) READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

01/ 12/ 04 (H) EDU, HES

02/ 17/ 04 (H) EDU AT 11: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

02/ 17/ 04 (H Moved CSHB 338(EDU) Qut of Conmittee
02/ 17/ 04 (H) M NUTE( EDU)

02/ 18/ 04 (H) EDU RPT 6DP 1NR

02/ 18/ 04 (H DP: WLSON, OGG SEATON, GARA, KAPSNER
02/ 18/ 04 (H) GATTO NR WOLF

02/ 18/ 04 (H) FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER HES

02/ 24/ 04 (H CORRECTED RPT CS(EDU) 3DP 1NR

02/ 24/ 04 (H) DP: WLSON, KAPSNER, GATTO, NR WOLF
03/ 02/ 04 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 02/ 04 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

03/ 25/ 04 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

03/ 25/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

03/ 25/ 04 (H) M NUTE( HES)

03/ 30/ 04 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

BILL: SB 288

SHORT TI TLE: TEMPORARY CHI LD CUSTODY HRNGS/ PLACENENT
SPONSOR(S):  SENATOR(S) GREEN

02/ 02/ 04 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS

02/ 02/ 04 (S) HES, JUD

02/ 09/ 04 (S) HES AT 1:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 09/ 04 (S) Moved CSSB 288(HES) Qut of Conmittee
02/ 09/ 04 (S) M NUTE( HES)

02/ 11/ 04 (S) HES RPT CS 3DP SAME TI TLE

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 2- March 30, 2004



02/ 11/ 04
02/ 11/ 04
02/ 18/ 04
02/ 18/ 04
02/ 18/ 04
02/ 23/ 04
02/ 23/ 04
03/ 01/ 04
03/ 01/ 04
03/ 01/ 04
03/ 01/ 04
03/ 01/ 04
03/ 01/ 04
03/ 09/ 04
03/ 09/ 04
03/ 09/ 04
03/ 10/ 04
03/ 10/ 04
03/ 10/ 04
03/ 15/ 04
03/ 15/ 04
03/ 16/ 04
03/ 16/ 04
03/ 30/ 04

BILL: SB 269

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

DP: DYSON, GREEN, W LKEN

FI N REFERRAL ADDED AFTER JUD
JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
Heard & Held

M NUTE( JUD)

JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205
-- Meeting Cancel ed --

JUD RPT CS  2DP 2NR NEW TI TLE
DP: SEEKI NS, OGAN; NR: THERRI AULT,
ELLIS

JUD AT 8: 00 AM BUTROVI CH 205

Moved CSSB 288(JUD) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( JUD)

FIN AT 9: 00 AM SENATE FI NANCE 532
Moved CSSB 288(JUD) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( FI N)

FIN RPT CS(JUD) 5DP 2NR

DP: GREEN, W LKEN, DYSON, BUNDE,
STEVENS B; NR. HOFFMAN, OLSON
TRANSM TTED TO (H)

VERSI ON: CSSB 288( JUD)

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

HES, JUD, FIN

HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

SHORT TI TLE: PARENT ACCESS TO CHI LD S LI BRARY RECORDS

SPONSOR( S) :

01/ 16/ 04
01/ 16/ 04
02/ 11/ 04
02/ 11/ 04
02/ 11/ 04
02/ 18/ 04
02/ 18/ 04
02/ 18/ 04
02/ 19/ 04
02/ 19/ 04
02/ 19/ 04
02/ 20/ 04
02/ 20/ 04
02/ 23/ 04
02/ 23/ 04
02/ 23/ 04
02/ 25/ 04
02/ 25/ 04

HOUSE HES COW TTEE

(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)
(S)

SENATOR(S) GREEN

READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS

CRA, HES

CRA AT 1:30 PM FAHRENKAMP 203

Heard & Hel d

M NUTE( CRA)

CRA AT 1:30 PM FAHRENKAMP 203

Moved CSSB 269(CRA) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( CRA)

CRA RPT CS 2DP 1DNP 2AM NEW Tl TLE
DP: STEDMVAN, WAGONER;, DNP: ELTON
AVMEND: LI NCOLN, STEVENS G

HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

-- Meeting Canceled --

HES AT 2: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

Moved CSSB 269(CRA) Qut of Conmittee
M NUTE( HES)

HES RPT CS(CRA) 2DP 1NR

DP: GREEN, WLKEN, NR GUESS

- 3- March 30, 2004



03/ 03/ 04 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 03/ 04 (S) VERS| ON:  CSSB 269( CRA)

03/ 04/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 04/ 04 (H) HES, JUD

03/ 30/ 04 (H) HES AT 3:00 PM CAPI TOL 106
BILL: SCR 19

SHORT TITLE: SUPPORTI NG FI SHERI ES EDUCATI ON
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) STEVENS G BY REQUEST OF SALMON | NDUSTRY
TASK FORCE

01/ 23/ 04 (S READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 23/ 04 (S) HES

02/ 25/ 04 (S) HES AT 1: 30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

02/ 25/ 04 (S Moved SCR 19 Qut of Commttee

02/ 25/ 04 (S) M NUTE( HES)

02/ 27/ 04 (S) HES RPT 2DP 2NR

02/ 27/ 04 (S DP: DYSON, WLKEN, NR GUESS, GREEN
03/ 03/ 04 (S) TRANSM TTED TO (H)

03/ 03/ 04 (S) VERSI ON:  SCR 19

03/ 04/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
03/ 04/ 04 (H FSH, HES

03/ 15/ 04 (H) FSH RPT 4DP 1NR

03/ 15/ 04 (H DP: OGG WLSON, SAMUELS, SEATON;
03/ 15/ 04 (H NR.  GUTTENBERG

03/ 15/ 04 (H FSH AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 15/ 04 (H Moved Qut of Conmittee

03/ 15/ 04 (H M NUTE( FSH)

03/ 30/ 04 (H) HES AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

RYAN MAKI NSTER, St aff

to Representative Lesil MCuire

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Representative
McGuire, sponsor of HB 338, and answered questions from the
conmittee.

SENATOR LYDA GREEN

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Sponsor of SB 288 and SB 269, testified on
the SB 288 and SB 269, and answered questions from the
committee.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -4- March 30, 2004



JACQUELI NE TUPQU, St aff

to Senator Lyda G een

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on SB 288 and SB 269, and
answered questions fromthe commttee.

JOANNE G BBENS, Program Adm ni strat or

Ofice of Children's Services

Departnent of Health and Social Services

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 288 and answered questions
fromthe nmenbers.

MARC ANTRI M Conmi ssi oner

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Corrections

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 269.

DI ANE KELLER, Mayor

City of Wasilla

Wasilla, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 269.

ANDREE McCLECD
Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of SB 269.

ARTHUR WEEKS, Director

Anchorage Muni ci pal Libraries

Muni ci pality of Anchorage

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in opposition to SB 269 and
answered questions fromthe nenbers.

KAY JABUSCH, Public Librarian

Irene Ingle Public Library

W angel |, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 269.

JUDI TH ANGLI N, Library Director

Ket chi kan Public Library

Ket chi kan, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 269 and answered questions
fromthe nenbers.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 5- March 30, 2004



JUNE PI NNELL- STEPHENS, Past President and Board Menber

Al aska Civil Liberties Union (AKCLU)

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on AKCLU s behalf on SB 269 and
answered questions fromthe commttee.

CHRI STI NE O CONNOR, Librarian

Di | 1'i ngham Public Library

D |I'li ngham Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 269 and answered questions
fromthe nenbers.

BARBARA BERG, Director

Juneau Public Library

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified on SB 269 and answered questions
fromthe commttee.

CHERYL SUTTON, Staff

to the Joint Legislative Sal non I ndustry Task Force

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified on behalf of Senator Gary
St evens, sponsor of SCR 19.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-24, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R PEGGY W LSON cal |l ed the House Heal th, Education and Socia
Services Standing Commttee neeting to order at 3:06 p.m
Representatives WIlson, WlIlf, Coghill, and Seaton were present
at the call to order. Representatives @Gtto, Ci ssnha, and
Kapsner arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 338- ENTRY | NTO SCHOOL

Nunber 0050

CHAI R WLSON announced that the first order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 338, "An Act relating to attendance at public
school ; and providing for an effective date.™

Number 0153

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 6- March 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL comrented that he will not object to the
bill nmoving out of conmttee; however, he told the nenbers that
he does not see the necessity of it since the admnistrative
authority in school districts can nake a determ nation al ready.

CHAIR WLSON said that there are probably a couple of districts
where this change would be very neaningful, such as districts
where there are a high nunber of people who are in the mlitary.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL agreed with Chair WIson's point, adding
that he represents residents of Fort Wi nwight.

Number 0278

CHAIR WLSON announce that Representative G ssna has joined the
nmeet i ng.

Nunmber 0288

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF pointed out that this issue could cone back
to the legislature again requesting that the date be rolled back
to Septenber 15, Septenber 30, or October 15.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL replied that he talked with Eddie Jeans
on that very issue. M. Jeans [Finance Manager, School Finance
and Facilities Section, Department of Education and Early
Devel opnent] explained to him that the school year starts on
July 1 and ends on June 30.

Number 0354

RYAN MAKI NSTER, Staff to Representative Lesil MQire, Al aska
State Legislature, testified on Dbehalf of Representati ve
McGQuire, sponsor of HB 338, and answered questions from the
committee. He told the nenbers that he spoke wth the
Anchor age, Fairbanks, and Juneau school districts regarding the
novenment of the early entry date to whatever was actually
established as the first day of school. The districts agreed
that it would be better to have a concrete date rather than a
rolling one. He summarized that it was the districts' wishes to
have one established date.

Nunber 0396

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL noved to report CSHB 338, Version S, out
of committee W th i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -7- March 30, 2004



338(HES) was reported out of the House Health, Education and
Soci al Services Standing Conmmttee.

SB 288- TEMPCRARY CHI LD CUSTODY HRNGS/ PLACEMENT

Nunber 0440

CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
SENATE BILL NO 288, "An Act relating to certain determ nations
concerning placenent of a <child in energency custody and
t enporary pl acenment heari ngs in chil d-in-need-of-aid
proceedi ngs; and providing for an effective date.”

Nunber 0457

SENATOR LYDA GREEN, Al aska State Legislature, sponsor of SB 288,
testified on the SB 288 and answered questions from the

comittee. She explained that SB 288 defines |anguage that a
judge nust use at a hearing when a child is being assessed or is
being determined as a child-in-need-of-aid. This bill says that
the judge nust use the phrase "contrary to the welfare of the
child", she stated. Senator G een enphasized that this bill has
nothing to do wth the process wused in mking that
determnation. This bill only refers to the |anguage the judge

must use at the tinme the decision is nmade, she reiterated.
Senator Geen pointed out that this has grave consequences for

the lifetime of the child in custody because wthout this
| anguage federal funding will be denied until the child "ages-
out" of the system It could be a |oss of hundreds of thousands
of dollars over a child' s Ilifetine. She stated that this

| anguage nust be in statute in order to properly capture those
funds.

CHAI R WLSON asked if this is a new requirenent.

SENATOR GREEN responded that she does not know if this
requirenent is new.

Nunmber 0588

JACQUELI NE TUPQU, Staff to Senator Lyda G een, Alaska State
Legislature, testified on SB 288 and answered questions fromthe

comittee. She explained that all the state laws are in place
that dictate this process, this bill only conforns the |anguage
that the judge nust wuse to be in conpliance with federal
requirenents. Ms. Tupou told the nenbers that this |anguage

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 8- March 30, 2004



will ensure that the state will receive an estinmated $500,000 in
federal [Title IV-E] funds in FYO5 with the passage of this
| egi sl ati on.
Nunber 0637

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF referred to the |ast sentence in the sponsor
statenent which reads as foll ows:

The Ofice of Children's Services estinates that

passage of this legislation will result in an increase
in federal Title IV-E receipts of $500,000 in fiscal
year 2005.

REPRESENTATATI VE WOLF commented that as a parent he finds this
sent ence troubling. Wiile he has no problemwith the bill, he
stated he is really concerned when getting nore noney is |inked
to kids [being renoved fromtheir hones].

SENATOR GREEN reiterated that nothing about this bill changes
the way the departnent or agency goes about meking a
determ nation for children

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF replied that he understands that. It is the
|l inking of receipts of noney to the welfare of children that is
bot hersonme, he reiterated.

Number 0730

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA agreed with Representative WIf on that
poi nt . She added that the state does not do everything it can
to provide services to famlies. Many times services which

woul d be helpful [in keeping famlies together] do not get to
the famlies who have slipped through the cracks of the system
If the resources could be nade available just before the judge
is ready to nake a decision, that is the teachable nonent for
the parents to change their |ives, Representative Cissna said

Budget cuts that effect kids are scary.

Nunmber 0814
REPRESENTATI VE WOLF noved to report SB 288(JUD), Version V, out
of commttee wth i ndi vi dual recommendat i ons and t he

acconpanyi ng fiscal notes.

Nunber 0847

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 9- March 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA obj ect ed. She said she would feel nore
confortable with this bill if the departnent would make nore of
a commtnent to keep kids in their hones and/or return themto
t heir hones.

Nunmber 0907

JOANNE G BBENS, Program Administrator, Ofice of Children's
Services, Departnent of Health and Social Services, testified on
SB 288 and answered questions fromthe nenbers.

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA noted that there is a shift from using
state general fund dollars to obtaining as nuch in federal funds
as possible. In naking this change there is a certain anount of
risk because the federal governnment disallows a lot of the
billings sent to them through Medicaid. She said she has been
working for six years to get intensive famly services in place
at that nonent when the judge is about to determne that the
hone is not safe. It is that nonent nmany famlies can be
hel ped, but the state is not offering these services, she added.
The foster care system funding has been whittled away, so there
is little training there too, and that is where the children
wll go.

M5. G BBENS replied [what happens next] depends on the judge's
determ nati on.

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA said the noney is an incentive to renove

the child, but the system is overwhel ned. The state is not
hel ping famlies keep their kids, or there would not be so many
kids in the system she added. Money isn't going into the
foster care system either. Representative Cissna told the

menbers that she wants commtnents fromthe departnent.

CHAIR WLSON commented that there are many changes taking place
in the system now. Next year may be a better time to nmake
demands because nmany of those changes will be in place. She
agreed with Representative Cissna on the funding issue and
offered to speak with nenbers of the House Finance Conmittee on
t hat point.

Number 1136
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for clarification on Representative

Ci ssna's question. He questioned whether she believes passing
this bill at this time, which would provide access to federal

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -10- March 30, 2004



funds, would then influence judges to pull nore kids from their
famlies.

REPRESENTATI VE CISSNA replied that the incentive would not be

for the judge to nake that determnation; it would be an
incentive to the state and incentives nmatter. It is an
addi ti onal $500, 000 t hat t he state woul d receive.

Representative Cissna told the nenbers that it has been known
for six years that intensive famly services work.

CHAIR WLSON urged Representative Cissna to sponsor a bill to
i npl enent intensive famly services. She asked Ms. G bbens to
respond to Representative Ci ssna's coments.

M5. G BBENS responded that this bill requires that the judge
nmake a certain ruling at the first hearing that concerns the
pl acenent of the child. She explained that part of the reason

this language is a requirenent for Title IV-E funding is because
the federal government wants to ensure that the parent's rights

and the child' s rights are protected. If the judge does not
make that ruling, then the child would be returned to his/her
hone, she said. The federal governnent is very clear that the

judge has nmade that ruling before providing funds.

M5. G BBENS pointed out that the Ofice of Children's Services
i s undergoing a trenendous anount of change at the present tine.
Keeping children in their own honme and preventing renoval is one
of the major areas of the program inprovenent plan, she said.
That is one of the reasons why the departnent has inplenented

the new Fam ly-to-Fam |y Project. The nunber one priority is to
keep kids safe, and famlies together if at all possible, she
sunmari zed. Ms. G bbens told the nenbers that she is very

confortable making that commtnment on behalf of the Ofice of
Chil dren's Servi ces.

CHAI R WLSON comrented that next year she hope the House Health,
Education and Social Services Standing Commttee would be
briefed on the progress the Ofice of Children's Services has
made in achieving these goals. She added that she hopes that
next year there will be additional funding to address [sone of
t he concerns Representative C ssna nentioned].

Number 1360

A roll call vote was taken. Representatives WIson, Wlf,
Coghi I I, Seat on, and Gatto voted in favor of SB  288.
Representatives Cissna voted against it. Therefore, CSSB

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -11- March 30, 2004



288(JUD), wversion V, was reported out of the House Health,
Educati on and Social Services Standing Commttee by a vote of 5-
1

SB 269- PARENT ACCESS TO CHI LD S LI BRARY RECCORDS

Number 1440

CHAI R WLSON announced that the next order of business would be
SENATE BILL NO 269, "An Act relating to access to the library
records of a child by a parent or guardian.”

Number 1464

SENATOR LYDA GREEN, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor of SB
269 presented the bill and answered questions from the nenbers.
She told the nenbers that she introduced SB 269 after having
conversations with residents in her district who had received
tel ephone <calls from the |ocal library concerning their
children. One was to say that a book had arrived that the child
had on order. The parent asked for the nane of the book and was
told that the name of the book could not be shared because that
was confidential information. The parent was also told that the

book could not be picked up with out the child present. In
anot her instance that telephone nessage was |left that there were
books overdue and a fine was being inposed. In this case it

happened to be the nmayor of Wasilla. When she called back to
get the nanes of the books so she could |look for them she was
informed that she could not have the names of the books her
eight or nine year old child had checked out. Senator G een
said that she was sure soneone had msinterpreted what the |aw
says so her office began the quest to determne this
interpretation.

Nunmber 1543

SENATOR GREEN explained that current law allows parents to
access children's library records at public school |libraries,
but public libraries are not included in that |anguage so there
is an assunption that the | aw does not include a public library.
The Federal Education R ghts and Privacy Act (FERPA) requires
that parents do have the right to access all educational records
of their children in a public school. This bill brings Al aska's
statutes into conformty with FERPA which provides for parents
with children under the age of 18 years old to access those
records, she said. Senator G een pointed out that this bill

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -12- March 30, 2004



will make public library standards conform to school |library
standards. She enphasi zed that she would not want to discourage
anyone from reading, or deny anyone the privacy of reading
whatever it is he/she may w sh. It is her concern that parents
have the right to access what their children are reading. There
is a real inconvenience for parents to not have that access over
the tel ephone. Senator Green said she finds it a disagreeable
issue that a public library could have nore information about a
child' s records than a parent is entitled to. There has been a
great deal of supportive correspondence. She added that she
does not want to create a nore difficult process for public
|ibraries and understands that there is a reason for privacy
protection on books that are checked out of the library. For
i nstance, she would not want to see a published |ist of books
and t he peopl e who checked them out.

Number 1760

MARC ANTRI M Conmi ssi oner, Ofice of the  Conmi ssi oner,
Department of Corrections, testified in support of SB 269. He
told the nmenbers that he is testifying today as the father of
Mol Iy, his 18-year-old daughter who is a voracious reader. He

told the nmenbers that this bill has special significance to him
because it addresses the concern of parental control. There is
concern about novies and TV shows that children watch wth
respect to sexual and violent content. Comm ssioner Antrim
pointed out that this bill will give rights back to parents to

nonitor what children are reading. He pointed out that parents
are financially |iable for the books their children take out,
but currently cannot know what those books are. At the other
end of the spectrum he said he wanted his daughter to read
everything that she coul d. He shared that at a very early age
his daughter received a library card, she would reserve a book
through their honme conputer, and he would receive a call when
the book was in. Then one tine he went down to pickup a book
for her and he was advised that she had to be with ne in order
to get the book. He told the nenbers that he got into a heated
di scussion and realized it was the library's policy and there
was no purpose in arguing about it. Later he called the
librarian and made an arrangenent whereby a note was placed in
the conputer to allow himto pickup his daughter's books. That
wor ked for a short while. At a certain point that even stopped.
By the age of 13 his daughter stopped using the public library
and she now uses Amazon.COM where she can buy used books.
Comm ssioner Antrim told the nenbers that he thinks this is
wong and is a result of unintended consequences of policies in
pl ace now. He pointed out that Juneau's library is not near a

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -13- March 30, 2004



| ot of neighborhoods and it was convenient for himto swing by
the library on the way honme and pickup books. He urged the
menbers' support of SB 269.

Nunber 1923

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO commented if |library books are private,
maybe grades should be private too. Most kids would vote for
t hat . The current right to privacy from parents on library

books that are checked out has gone beyond the point of being
reasonabl e, he added.

COWM SSI ONER ANTRIM agreed that the current |aw does not nmake
sense.

Number 1970

Dl ANE KELLER, Mayor, Cty of Wasilla, testified in support of SB
269. She explained that when her son was young she got him his
own library card to teach him about responsibility. However ,
there cane a tinme when there were books that needed to be
returned and she wanted to find out what was checked out so they
could be returned. She was told that the information could not

be provided to her. Mayor Keller said she and her son searched
t he house for any books that were clearly library books, but did
not get themall. The library then sent her a bill for overdue

books her son had checked out and listed every title that she
was refused to be given on the telephone prior to them being
overdue. There is an inconsistency in that she can't know what
the books are before they are overdue, yet she is held
responsible for themlater.

MAYOR KELLER told the nmenbers that she has had numerous parents
conplain to her on this sane issue. She has encouraged themto
contact their legislature because it is a state issue, rather
than a | ocal one. She told the nenbers she supports the bill

Number 2102

ANDREE McCLECD testified in support of SB 269. She told the
menbers that she is the parent of a 21 year old and as far as
she is concerned he still does not have a right to privacy. She
said that she wants to thank Senator Geen for taking on what
m ght appear to be an annoyance, but in all actuality points to
an acrinonious public policy that is adversarial to parents and
guardians of children wunder the age of 18. Ms. Md eod

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -14- March 30, 2004



commented that she is appalled at what pronpted this |egislation
and urged the nenbers to support the SB 269.

Nunber 2212

ARTHUR WEEKS, Director, Anchorage Minicipal Libraries, testified
in opposition to SB 269 and answered questions from the nenbers.
He explained that he has been a librarian for the past 28 years
and is the father of two children, one who is now an adult. He
told the nenbers that for all of those years he has protected
the rights of privacy of individuals who nmake reading a matter
of personal inquiry and who want to take thenselves on a self-
di rected individual educational path that is free from oversight
of the state or a parent. For exanple, a child may seek
information at the library to help them through a difficult
time, whether it be parental abuse, alcoholism or other
conditions in which the child my not want parental oversight.

MR. WEEKS commented that the reason this bill was witten is
that the parent asked what the child was reading. He said he
wonders why the parent didn't sinply ask the child. M. Weks
said that wth open communication this bill should not be
necessary. He said that the m ssion between school I|ibraries
and public libraries is very different. The mssion of the
public libraries is to provide information and inspiration for
people to grow and devel op. This bill would underm ne that
m ssi on, he added. He said he understands why parents want the
assistance of a librarian guiding and coaching children in what
their reading should be. At a young age a child should not be
at a library without their parent anyway, he said. Wen a child
reaches the teen years he/she should be able to explore with the
sane kind of protection to privacy as that offered by a
psychol ogist or health care provider. M. Weks told the
menbers that he strongly opposes this bill. It could have the
sanme results as the Patriot Act and the nenbers could find that
there are unintended consequences of this |egislation.

Number 2384

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if M. Weks is famliar with the
book titled "It is Only Natural."

MR. WEEKS said that he is not famliar with it and asked
Representative Gatto to review if for him

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that it is a very controversial book
and has been asked to be renoved from certain libraries. | t

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -15- March 30, 2004



treats sexuality very factually and is full of photographs. He
said that it was available to children in el enentary school s.

TAPE 04-24, SIDE B

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO told M. Weks that this book actually told
students how to have sex. He asked himif he did not think that
it mght be inportant for parents to know if their child was
checki ng out books such as this.

MR. WEEKS replied that he is fromthe school that if a child is
old enough to ask, then the child is old enough to get a
responsi bl e answer. He comented that his child, who is about
11 years old, recently asked hi mabout sex.

Number 2350

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF asked if M. Weks wouldn't prefer that his
child ask himthe question rather than go to the library for the
answers. He asked him if he didn't see this as a parent's
responsibility rather than sonme librarian who is a stranger.

MR. WEEKS said that he has observed that his child selects
reading matter at the level that he can understand what he is
reading and viewing. He said he is not worried that this would
bring harmto his child.

KAY JABUSCH, Public Librarian, 1Irene 1Ingle Public Library,
testified on SB 269. She told the nenbers that she was born and
raised in Wangell and has served as the public librarian for 22
years. Ms. Jabusch explained that her concern lies with the
fact that the library staff has no way to detern ne which parent
or guardian may have the legal right to request the information

about their child' s library records. She pointed out that the
public library does not work under the same conditions as the
school [Ilibrary. There could be sonme liability to the staff

under the proposed |law, M. Jabusch added. She summari zed her
comments by saying that there has not been one instance where
the library staff has not been able to work with the parents and
the child with regard to the books that were borrowed from the
library. The existing rules work, she added.

Nunmber 2235
JUDITH ANGLIN, Library D rector, Ketchikan Public Library,

testified on SB 269 and answered questions from the nenbers.
She said that she does have parents conme into the library and

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -16- March 30, 2004



request information about the books their child has checked out.
It is explained to them that a permi ssion note from the child
nmust be placed on the child's record saying it is okay for the
parents to see the child' s records. M. Anglin told the nenbers

that once that is done, it remains in place until the child
requests the perm ssion note be renoved. She enphasized that it
is not that difficult a situation to work around. Ms. Anglin

said that the point needs to be nmade that not all famlies are
fully functional and not all parents have their children' s best
interest at heart. Sonmetinmes children need protection from
their famlies. Ms. Anglin told the nenbers that she agrees
w th Kay Jaybusch's comments that this puts public librarians in
an untenabl e situation. She said she believes it is inportant
that young adults are free to seek information w thout their
parent's know edge. This could create a difficult situation at
hone, she added. In summary, she told the nmenbers that she does
not want to see librarians getting between parents and children.

Nunmber 2148
REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if the current |aw doesn't create the
environment that puts the library staff between the parent and

the child, rather than avoiding it.

M5. ANGLIN replied that obviously she has a difference of
opinion. She comented that a parent can always ask their child

and the child can always ask their parent. M. Anglin said that
the librarian would prefer not to be meking these judgnent calls
about who is or is not authorized to get this information. It

woul d be better for the parent and child to work it out between
t hem

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked Ms. Anglin if she does not see it as
a judgnment call when denying the right for a parent to view
records. He asked which parent would have the right to view
their child' s library records and which parent would |oose the
right, if parents are not getting al ong.

M5. ANGLIN responded that there would be no way for a public
librarian to know that information. It is not possible for a
librarian to know which parent has custodial rights and which
one does not.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked how it would neke any difference
whi ch parent had custodial rights. Way woul d one parent have
that right and not the other, he asked. Perhaps Ms. Anglin
believes that it is appropriate for her to determ ne which

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -17- March 30, 2004



parent has the right and which one does not, in spite of what
t he noncust odi al parent may want, he added.

M5. ANGLIN said that she does not want to comment because she
does not have the expertise to make that judgnent.

Nunber 2072

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked how often it is necessary to explain
to parents that they nust get their child s perm ssion.

M5. ANGLIN responded that it probably conmes up about once a
nont h.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked how many people use the library.

M5. ANGLIN replied that the library |ends about 200,000 itens
per year.

Nunber 2010

JUNE PI NNELL- STEPHENS, Past President and Board Menber, Al aska
Cvil Liberties Union (AKCLU), testified on AKCLU s behalf on SB

269 and answered questions from the comittee. She told the
menbers that in addition to her work on the AKCLU she has al so
been a public librarian for nore than 30 years. Ms. Pinnell-

St ephens shared that she has served as the President of the
Al aska Library Association and the Pacific Northwest Library
Associ ation. She stated that she does not support the change in
the confidentiality records in SB 269.

M5. PINNELL- STEPHENS explained that in nost |ibraries before
children under a certain age can obtain their own library card
parents must sign a form agreeing to be responsible for their
children's use of the Ilibrary. Even if this form were not
signed, parents are still responsible for their children's
actions whether or not the parent agrees with the child or not.
Ms. Pinnell-Stephens said that once a card has been issued
anyone can use it. She commented that parents can use their
child' s card to check out itens if they have forgotten their own
card or often because their cards are bl ocked because the parent
has overdue materi al

MS. PINNELL- STEPHENS pointed out that with this bill all the
records could be divulged, possibly to a divorced spouse, who
may or may not have custody of a child, but would have a right
under this change to view the records. Li braries that do not

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 18- March 30, 2004



have the neans or authority to wunravel conplicated famly
relationships will be placed in the mddle of a custody battle
or divorce, particularly when there is a disagreenent in how to
raise their children, she added.

M5. PINNELL- STEPHENS explained that all Jlibraries send out
notices on overdue materials which provides all the information
necessary for parents to track down the material and return it.
There may be fines to pay, but they are capped at a very npdest
anount . Many libraries, such as the one where she works does
not charge fines at all, she added.

M5. Pl NNELL- STEPHENS said that she believes there are two
possi ble reasons for this bill. One is to help parents avoid
m nor inconveniences in handling their children's transactions
at the library. Parents who are concerned about fines should
work with the local library to adjust fines or have them
el i mnated, she added. Anot her way to address this problemis
to note the nunber of books that are checked out or designate a
special shelf at hone for easy identification. Many states have
laws which allow a person to authorize release of his/her
records. Ms. Pinnell-Stephens said she would support this kind
of anmendnent to the bill. She comented that she heard Federa

Educati onal Records Privacy Act (FERPA) nentioned and expl ai ned
that this act does not apply to public libraries because public
i braries do not have students.

M5. PINNELL- STEPHENS offered another possible reason for this
bill is to help parents control the content of what their
children are reading. The right to privacy statute is
guaranteed in the state's constitution and one that is not
restricted by age. She suggested that a better way for parents
to handle this kind of problemis to use this as an opportunity
to discuss what their children are reading and to share their
val ues and provide guidance. She said that wunfortunately for
many children they are trapped in grim famly situations where
the library is the only source of information or solace.
Children may check out books about abuse to wite a report for
school, but they may al so be victins of abuse.

Number 1859
M5. PI NNELL- STEPHENS summarized that there are less restrictive
ways to address the inconvenience to parents. She urged the

menbers to support the constitutional right to privacy.

Number 1840

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -19- March 30, 2004



CHAIR WLSON comrented that she understands what M. Pinnell-

St ephens is saying about the right to privacy. If a child is
bei ng abused, the child likely would not bring a book about that
subj ect hone. She said that she is having a hard tine

connecting the concern about taking away rights to privacy when
the child could just spend the tinme in the library, read the
book, and not even check it out.

V5. PINNELL- STEPHENS replied that the wunderlying principal is
that mnors have the sanme constitutional rights as adults. She
said that the older a child is, the nore likely the courts would
uphold the rights of a mnor. There could be sonme very
substantial challenges on the right to privacy as well as the
right to receive information

Number 1770

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER posed a hypothetical question about a
child who is a ward of the state and in foster care. She asked
who would sign off for the child [to have a library card].

V5. PI NNELL- STEPHENS replied that she has no idea.
Nunber 1740

REPRESENTATI VE ~ WLSON conmmented that she believes that
librarians are fearful of being held |iable because information
was released to the wong parent. She asked if M. Pinnell-
St ephens believes that if this bill passes, a librarian will be
hel d |iable at sonme point.

MS. PINNELL- STEPHENS responded that it is possible that at sone
point librarians will be drawn into a |egal action because often
parents do not agree on how to raise their children. She
pointed to the U S. Suprene Court case that was argued |ast week
where the "Under God" phrase in the pledge of allegiance was
di scussed. In this case one parent took the case to the U S
Suprene Court, while the child and nother did not agree with the
f at her.

Nunber 1670
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked if she has any citations in Al aska
that would relate to the right of privacy, at what age, and

schools libraries vs. public libraries, that mght apply to this
bill.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 20- March 30, 2004



M5. PINNELL- STEPHENS replied that she does not have one for
Al aska or even the 9th Crcuit Court of Appeals, but would be
happy to check into it and get the information back to the
commttee if she finds sonething.

Nunber 1640

CHRI STINE O CONNOR, Li brari an, Dillingham Public Library,
testified on SB 269 and answered questions from the nenbers.

She told the nmenbers that she believes this bill needs to be
anmended to pr ot ect t he t eens who use t he library.
Unfortunately, not all teens conme from caring hones. In sone
cases the parents are either indifferent or harnful to these
young adults. She explained that these are the teens she
believes will be harnmed if this bill passes as it now reads.
Teens who lose the privacy of their library will be losing the

security of knowing that they can cone to the library for safe
access to vital information. Ms. O Connor told the nenbers that

girls wll come to her with a stack of books and as she is
checking them out, she wll realize the books are about
pr egnancy. Wil e she knew these teens and their parents, each

tinme she was saddened to realize that these young girls were
devel oping an wunderstanding for the situation they were in.
These girls alnost always conme from sad honmes, where they have
virtually raised thenselves because of neglect or abuse, she
added. In small towns a visit to the public health center does
not go wunnoticed, she said. The library allows teens the
ability to get the information needed privately and then they
can make decisions with a little nore information than they once
had. In summary, Ms. O Connor urged the nenbers to maintain the
privacy sanctuary and keep these at risk teens in mnd when
hearing this bill

Number 1550

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if teens ever cone to the Ilibrary,
read, and not check out books.

M5. O CONNOR said yes. A particular book called "A Wnan's
Body" which is not explicit, but one which she often finds in
the back corner of the library. She said that she does not
agree with an earlier coment that kids that are at risk would
not check out a book on abuse and take it honme. Many kids wl|
| eave the book in their backpack or in their school |ocker. She
said she knows this because at the end of the school year the
school will return sone of the books to the public library.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -21- March 30, 2004



Number 1494

BARBARA BERG, Director, Juneau Public Library, testified on SB
269 and answered questions fromthe commttee. She provided the
menbers with a copy of the Patron R ght to Privacy procedures
used by the Gty and Borough of Juneau's public library. Ms.
Berg told the menber that while she is very synpathetic to
parents' interest in being involved in their children's
education and reading, she said she believes the best way to
acconplish that is for parents to discuss with their children
what they are reading and learning in school. It is also
inmportant to go to the library with them when they are young, so
that as they get older the parents can trust their judgnents.

Number 1422

M5. BERG told the nenbers that |ibrarians are concerned not just
because they would be required to reveal the private reading
matter of <children, but personal registration information is
al so covered by this bill too. She pointed out that a l|ibrarian
does not know if the person requesting the information has any
right to that information. It could be the parent, |egal
guardi an, or sone stranger off the street who is representing
t henmsel ves as a parent or guardian. She noted that these days
very seldom do children have the sane last nanme as their
parents. There is no real way for a librarian to establish that
the adult requesting the information has any right to it wthout
requesting a birth certificate or passports.

M5. BERG said that she is concerned with young adults needing
sensitive information and being unwlling to engage in a
transaction in a public library to take that material out unless
t hey have an expectation of confidentiality.

Number 1340

M5. BERG referred to the Patron Right to Privacy policy and
di scussed the way the library enables parents to see what the
chil dren have checked out. The parent can instruct the child to
request a copy of the nmaterial checked out, the parent can
retain possession of the card, and the parent can do all the
checkout for the child on the child s card. Ms. Berg expl ai ned
that if a parent has the child' s library card, it is assuned to
be perm ssion to access library records and check books out for
the child. A signed note can also be used to pickup naterials
for a child. She said that if sonmeone cones in wthout the

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -22- March 30, 2004



library card or note, and the person is available by tel ephone
then their verbal agreenent would allow books to be checked out
for the child. Ms. Berg told the nenbers that it is the
library's position that once a notice of overdue books has gone
out, the right of privacy has been |ost because the financial
responsibility has been transferred to the parent.

M5. BERG commented that this bill wuld extend to state
libraries as well. She said that 48 states disall ow exam nation
of records by anyone other than the cardholder in academ c and
state libraries. Also, in 41 states soneone other than the
cardholder is disallow examnation of records in public
libraries.

CHAIR WLSON clarified that whoever has possession of the card
has access to the records, even if the card is not in that
person's nane.

M5. BERG told the nenbers that in the Juneau library system the
interpretation of the confidentiality |law provided to them by
the city attorney indicates that the contract is the card. If a
parent has the card in their possession there is the assunption
that the parent has been given perm ssion to see what has been
checked out on that card, she said. This interpretation has not
been tested in a court of law, she added. Ms. Berg expl ai ned
that the library was also told on the advice of the city's |ega
representation that when noney is owed or itens are overdue, the
parent may see what is on the record because they have a
financial responsibility.

CHAIR WLSON commented that before a child gets a library card
the parent nust sign an agreenent that they wll assune
financial responsibility for whatever is checked out on the
card. So the parent can't know what was checked out; however,
if it is past due, then the library will tell the parent what is
over due.

IVB. BERG replied that s correct, because a financial
responsibility has been incurred at that point.

CHAIR WLSON asked if this breaks the privacy protection of the
child.

MS. BERG responded that it does not break the privacy protection
of the child according to the legal advice the libraries were
given by the city attorney. She commented that there is sone
inconsistency in how this is applied. Ms. Berg said that a

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -23- March 30, 2004



previ ous speaker appreciated that a note could be attached to
the system but unfortunately, the current system does not allow
notes to be attached. It is a software problem she added.

CHAIR WLSON asked for clarification on her comment about 41
st at es.

M5. BERG replied that 41 states do not allow exam nation of
library records by anyone other than the cardhol der.

Number 1046
REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked how often this becones an i ssue.

M5. BERG responded that she could not say because she does not
work at the circulation desk. She commented that the only tine
she hears about it is when soneone is upset about it. M. Berg
did say that the exanple that was given today [by Comm ssioner
Antrim is the only one she recalls since being named acting
director in May of |ast year. The policy is normally explained
to the parent when they sign their child up for a library card,
she added.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked how a child nornmally gets a library
card.

M5. BERG said the parent conmes in with the child. If a child
cones in and asks for a card then a guardian card is given to
the child to take honme for signature. The card is conpleted and
signed, and then brought back to the library where the child
W ll receive a library card, she expl ai ned.

Number 0923

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO pointed to page 1, lines 12 through 14
whi ch reads:

(b) Records of a [PUBLIC ELEMENTARY OR SECONDARY SCHOOL] library
identifying a [MNORl child under 18 years of age shall be made
avai l abl e on request to a parent or guardian of that child.

MS. BERG responded that is correct. She noted that this relates
to a public elenentary or secondary school library; it is not a
public library.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO clarified that parents can get information
on books checked out from a school library at any tinme, but not

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 24- March 30, 2004



froma public library. He asked Ms. Berg if she believes that
is a distinction that is reasonabl e or beneficial.

M5. BERG replied that she does believe it is reasonable and
beneficial because the public library is an independent | earning
envi ronnent . She said she believes it is especially essential
when children reach their teen years. At this point the teens
are using the library as adults to foster their own | earning.

Nunmber 0828

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO commented that there are a lot of TV adds
that ask parents how they know if their kids are on drugs, and
the response is that they ask their kids every day. He said
that is an add that is pronoting parental involvenent in the
activities of their children. He asked Ms. Berg if that is in
keeping with the situation where it is being said that parental
i nvol venent is not wanted.

M5. BERG responded that is absolutely not what she is saying.
She clarified that she does want parental involvenent but said
she does not believe parental involvenment should occur by
putting a librarian between a child and his/her parents. She
said she believes parents should be talking with their children,
going to the library with them and should be constantly engaged
in their lives. |If a parent is caring and involved in a child's
upbringing the child does not becone secretive.

Nunber 0734

SENATOR GREEN directed the nenbers' attention to the list of
state's which specifically say that parents are allowed access
to school library records.

CHAI R W LSON asked how current the list is.

JACQUELI NE TUPQU, Staff to Senator Lyda Geen, Alaska State
Legislature, testified on SB 269 and answered questions fromthe
comittee. She told the nmenbers that she obtained the
information from the National Conference of State Legislatures
(NCSL) about three nonths ago.

SENATOR GREEN continued to explain that in eight states it
specifically says parents have access to public library records,

14 states provide for students' I|ibrary records to be private
and 23 states have no | aws specifically addressing children, but
provide for public library records to be confidential. She told

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -25- March 30, 2004



the nmenbers that she did further research on the states that are
silent and do not address children's privacy rights. However,
whenever there has been a court process dealing with this issue
the courts have sided wth the parents' rights to access of
their children's records with respect to public libraries.

CHAIR WLSON clarified that according to the NCSL 13 states
allow parental access, 14 states provided for records to be
private, and 23 state have no laws specifically addressing
chil dren, but provide for public Ilibrary records to be
confidential.

M5. TUPQU provided additional <clarification that in the 23
states that do not have a specific law either way, although
library records are confidential there are four incidents of
case law that says that if it cane right down to it the parents
have the right to the records and children do not have rights of
privacy for the library records. She comented that given this
case law it could be viewed that these states did not provide
for the children's records to be private.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON pointed out that of the 13 states that
provi de parental access, five of those states specifically say

access to school library records. In the case of those five
states the law would not apply to public library records, he
conment ed. He said that he believes under federal Ilaw all

states would have to allow access to library records for all
schools, so those five states are really just mrroring the
federal |aw. Representative Seaton noted that there are really
only eight states that allow for parental access to children's
public library records.

M5. TUPQU told the nenbers that Representative Seaton is
referring to the Famly Educational R ghts and Privacy Act
(FERPA) which becane law in 1974. In 2002 there was a U S
Suprene Court decision which said that the federal governnent
needs to be diligent about enforcing this |aw As a result an
office called the Famly Conpliance Ofice was opened to
specifically ensure that parents have access to their children's
records, she explained. A state that is not in conpliance wl|
| ose all federal education funding. She suggested that as the
of fice | ooks at each state and its conpliance, these issues wll
be raised in other states as well.

SENATOR GREEN noted that this act refers to public school
records.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 26- March 30, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE SEATON commented that the nunbers are consi stent.

SENATOR GREEN reiterated that there are 23 states where the | aw
coul d apply.

Nunmber 0406

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA poi nted out that Al aska has sonme of the
strongest privacy laws in the nation. She shared that she
taught her daughter the right to privacy and dignity at an early
age. I f her daughter received a library card at an early age,
Representative Cissna said she would have kept the library card
hersel f. Children who receive and keep library cards thensel ves
probably do not have the kind of parents who would be checking
what their children read, until it was necessary to pay a fine.
She said that she likes the idea of a parent asking their
children for perm ssion because it is giving a child sonme power.

REPRESENTATIVE CISSNA asked if the age of 17 ~could be
reconsi der ed si nce children start to t ake on nor e
responsibility, go places, and do things on their own at a
younger age.

NUMBER 0202

SENATOR GREEN responded that she | ooked at the FERPA
requi renents for consistency purposes and set the age at the

sane level as that in federal statute. She pointed out that
parent's still have the financial responsibility for overdue or
| ost books until the age of 18. Senator Green comented that

children do not have the right to enter into contracts, nor do
they have the right to give their parents perm ssion to do these
t hi ngs. That is a distinction that is being nmade here. She
told the commttee that civil rights and rights to privacy are
subject to interpretation, particularly where parents have

rights and a responsibility for oversight. Senator G een stated
that this bill was not intended to becone a civil rights issue.
It is to bring sone degree of reason to daily life in raising
chil dren. She reiterated the frustration felt by many parents
and the inflexibility of many Ilibraries which has becone a
pr obl em She noted that the Juneau nodel probably works very
wel |l in Juneau; however, she told the nenbers that no one should

have nore information about soneone's children than the parent
has.

TAPE 04-25, SIDE A

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -27- March 30, 2004



Number 0040

REPRESENTATI VE ClI SSNA responded that she understands what
Senator Green is saying and would normally agree with her, but
in this case the parent has signed a form or contract that says
their child has permission to check out items fromthe library.
She said it is her understanding that the rules which relate to
this are clearly delineated on the form

SENATOR GREEN said that she believes that may only apply to the
Juneau Public Libraries.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA comrented that she would like to know if
that is the case.

M5. TUPQU shared that Senator Geen's office has talked to many
libraries across the state who have a variety of approaches to
this issue. She said that when the parents do sign the form
agreeing to be legally responsible for the books, what they are
really signing is that they are legally responsible for their
child's actions with respect to the itenms checked out of the
library. So what this legislation is saying is that parents
have access to what they are legally responsible for.

M5. TUPQU told the nenbers that she has tal ked extensively with
Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services about this issue. She
faxed Juneau public library's policy to them and their take is
that the way it is giving out information to parents is on very
soft legal ground and in sonme cases it is actually breaking the
law. She commented that it is unfortunate that this is turning
librarians into crimnals for using common sense and providing
information to parents.

Nunber 0182

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked what <criteria librarians use to
determ ne who the legal guardian is for a child.

SENATOR GREEN responded that it is being done the same way it is
done when the parent or guardian cones into the library with the
child to apply for a card. She said her issue is not with the
level of the reading material, but wth the combn sense
information a parent should be entitled to from the public
library. She pointed out that no parent would go to a library
and ask for an address or phone nunber for their child. She
commented that this really is about sinplicity. In response to
Representati ve Kapsner's comment about children in foster care,

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 28- March 30, 2004



in this case the agency approved foster parent should be the
person who should have access to that information for that
child, she said.

Nunber 0369

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON commented that a lot of times it is the
devil in the details. There are a lot of parents who are
divorced and a non-custodial parent may want information that
the library is required to provide, i ncluding personal
information and the child' s book |Iist. This could nmake an
interesting case, he added. Representative Seaton asked what

woul d happen with emanci pated m nors.

SENATOR GREEN told the nenbers that enmancipated mnors are
consi dered i ndependent from parental control.

Nunber 0420

M5. TUPOQU offered a point of clarification that Legislative
Legal and Research Services stated that a librarian who acts in
good faith would not be subject to litigation in a case where
information were provided to sonmeone who is not the child's
parent or |egal guardian.

CHAI R W LSON asked Ms. Tupou to expand on that point.

M5. TUPOQU said that Legislative Legal and Research Services
advised her that when talking about the |legal 1issues of
liability if something were to occur in which a librarian acted
in good faith during the normal course of his/her job the
l'i brari an woul d not be subject to litigation.

CHAIR WLSON asked Ms. Tupou to provide a witten |egal opinion
from Legislative Legal and Research Services which could be
forwarded to the next commttee of referral.

MS5. TUPQU said she would do that.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON told the nenbers that he would like to
hear a discussion on the constitutionality of the privacy
provision by Legislative Legal and Research Services. He
comented that Alaska is quite different than other states in
that Al askans' privacy is protected under its constitution.
Representative Seaton said that he would also like to know how
this relates to the University of Al aska and private nonprofit
or gani zati ons.

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -29- March 30, 2004



Nunmber 0586

M5. TUPOU commented that Senator Green's office had received an
e-mail that there m ght be constitutional issues with respect to
privacy wwth this bill. She explained that in her discussions
with Legislative Legal and Research Services it was indicated
that under the constitution it is the legislature that sets
those policies with respect to privacy.

Number 0605

REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL read [Article 1, Section 22] of the
Constitution of the State of Al aska as follows:

Right to Privacy. The right of the people to privacy is
recogni zed and shall not be infringed. The | egislature shall

i npl ement this section.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL comented that the legislature has done
this many tines. The basis of this argunent and the policy cal

that the legislature is asked to make is if a parent 1is
responsible for the establishnment of the library card and the
itens that may be checked out on it, then do the parents have

the right to that information. He said he sides with the
parents right to have the information over a library official's
determ nati on. Representative Coghill said he believes that

woul d stand up in any court.

CHAIR WLSON agreed with Representative Coghill. However, she
said that she wants to assure that librarians are not left in
the m ddl e.

REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL said he appreciates and agrees with Chair
Wl son's concern for |ibrarians. Once the librarian gives the
information to the parents, any argunent is really between the
parent and the child, he added.

CHAIR WLSON stated that librarians should not concern
thensel ves as to whether the parent requesting the information
is the custodial parent or the visiting parent. This should not
be a problem If it beconmes one, the legislature could fix it,
she added.

Nunber 0767

REPRESENTATI VE CI SSNA commented that if a parent goes to check

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 30- March 30, 2004



out a book a library card is necessary.

M5. TUPQU said that is not exactly correct. She explained that
in the exanple discussed earlier the books were checked out on-

line. In doing this the child' s library card nunber was entered
into the conputer electronically and the parent stopped by to
pick up the books later. She added that this my not be

possible at every library in the state, but some libraries do
offer this option.

REPRESENTATI VE Cl SSNA asked how many [libraries] can check out
books on-1i ne.

MB. TUPQU responded that she does not know.

SENATOR CGREEN commented that she assunmes all the mjjor
muni cipalities have this capability.

Number 0870

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON told the nenbers that |ast session the
| egi sl ature passed [SCS CSHIR 22(Jud)] which was related to the

Patriot Act. On page two of that legislation it read as
fol |l ows:

FURTHER RESOLVED that, in the absence of reasonable
suspicion of crimnal activity under Al aska State |aw,
may not

(1) initiate, participate in, or assist or cooperate
with an inquiry, i nvestigation, surveill ance, or
detention;

(2) record, file, or share intelligence information
concerning a person or organization, including library
| ending and research records, book and video store
sales and rental records, nedical records, financial
records, student records, and other personal data even
i f authorized under the USA PATRI OT Act;

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON comented that at the time this resolution
unani nously passed both houses of the legislature there was
di scussion that the nenbers did not want records nmintained,

such as library records, that could then be shared with the
federal governnent. He said he wants to nmake sure it is on the
record that this bill does not require any libraries to maintain

records beyond its normal policy and is consistent with [SCS

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -31- March 30, 2004



CSHIR 22(Jud)].

Number 0950

REPRESENTATIVE COGHILL agreed wth Representative Seaton's
poi nt . He commented that it is a stretch to connect these two
pi eces of |egislation. He stated that there is nothing in SB
269 which would require retention of library records.
Representative Coghill told the nenbers that he was the co-
author of the resolution which cane about as a result of
concerns for governnent intrusion, and this bill is about
parental involvenent in their children's lives. These are two

entirely different issues, he added for the record.

M5. TUPQU agreed with the Representatives Seaton and Coghill and
reiterated that SB 269 has nothing to do with record retention

She pointed out that the state archivist is the person who
oversees record retention and believes the policy is to retain
records for state libraries for three years. He also puts out a
suggest ed records retention schedul e to each of t he
muni ci palities, but each library decides its own policy, M.
Tupou expl ai ned.

Number 0999

REPRESENTATIVE COGHI LL noved to report CSSB 269(CRA), 23-
LS1457\Q out of committee with individual recomendations and
t he acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSSB
269(CRA) was reported out of House Health, Education and Soci al
Servi ces Standing Conmittee.

SCR 19- SUPPORTI NG FI SHERI ES EDUCATI ON

Nunber 1010

CHAI R WLSON announced that the final order of business would be
SENATE CONCURRENT RESCLUTION NO. 19, Relating to the support of
fisheries education, training, and research and encouraging
col | aborative efforts between the state, the University of
Al aska, and other educational institutions to provide fisheries
educati on prograns.

Number 1070

CHERYL SUTTON, Staff, Joint Legislative Salnon Industry Task
Force, Al aska State Legislature, testified on behalf of Senator

HOUSE HES COW TTEE -32- March 30, 2004



Gary Stevens, sponsor of SCR 19. She commented that Chair
W son and Representative Seaton have already heard this bill in
a previous commttee and asked for their assistance in ensuring
that all pertinent information that she mght omt, be provided

to the nenbers. Ms. Sutton explained that the Legislative
Sal non Industry Task Force recommended this resolution because
of its belief in the inportance of fisheries education

training, and research as a long-term solution for revitalizing
the fishing and seafood industry. She added that currently
there are no educational institutions in the United States that
offer a seafood business degree. This resolution recomrends

t hat education providers in the state collaborate to devel op and
provi de fisheries education progranms in Al aska.

M5. SUTTON told the nenbers that in the House Special Commttee
on Fisheries Representative (Ogg recognized that f or mer
Representative Hermann was the noving force behind this effort.
She pointed out that there is a zero fiscal note and that SCR 19
unani nously passed the Al aska State Senate.

Nunber 1121

REPRESENTATI VE WOLF said that since no educational institutions
of fer seafood business degrees, he asked if the University of
Al aska mght develop an educational curriculum for industry
prof essional s such as roe inspectors.

M5. SUTTON replied that 1is precisely what SCR 19 would
encour age.

Nunber 1152
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report SCR 19 out of commttee
with individual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal

notes. There being no objection, SCR 19 was reported out of the
House Heal th, Education and Soci al Services Standing Conmittee.

ADJ CQURNMENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Heal t h, Education and Social Services Standing Committee neeting
was adjourned at 5:00 p.m

HOUSE HES COW TTEE - 33- March 30, 2004



